PMRS RFP for General Investment Consultant 
Technical Submittal

*OFFEROR for each technical submittal entry:  please answer the question, describe how you will fulfill scope or requirement, or provide evidence of deliverable.
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B. Purpose and Requested Services

C. Investment Manager Search, Selection and Review of Fees and Contracts (Scoring and    evaluation of managers)

D. Investment Performance Monitoring, Reporting, Analysis, Recommendations

E. Risk Management

F. Asset Class Structures and Liability Modeling

G. Board Support: Meetings and Training

H. Other duties, projects, services, communications

I. Qualifications

J. Disaster Recovery



A. Introduction
The Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (“PMRS”) is requesting proposals from investment consulting firms to provide general investment consulting services across all asset classes, periodic asset liability studies, and performance measurement services to its Board of Trustees and staff. In addition to investment expertise, candidates should have substantial experience working with defined benefit plans. Experience with agent multiple-employer pension plans is preferred.  This search was authorized by the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement Board of Trustees and seeks to identify potential full-service general retainer investment consultants. PMRS was created in 1974, as established by Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement Law, 53 P.S. §881.101, et. seq. As of December 31, 2024, PMRS’ market value of assets was approximately $3.52 billion, and the assumed actuarial investment rate of return was 5.25%. The assumed rate of return was increased to 5.5% beginning January 1, 2025.  Attached as Appendix A is a copy of the current PMRS Board Members and current Investment Managers.





Current asset allocation and strategic target allocations are below: 


	
	Current
	Target

	Equities
	57.7%
	55.0%

	Domestic
	35.8%
	32.5%

	Global
	5.1%
	5.0%

	International
	16.8%
	17.5%

	Fixed income
	27.3%
	29.0%

	Investment grade
	21.8%
	24.0%

	Opportunistic credit
	5.5%
	5.0%

	Real assets
	14.1%
	15.0%

	Real estate
	9.3%
	10.0%

	Timber
	4.8%
	5.0%

	Cash & cash equivalents
	0.9%
	1.0%


*Additional information can be found on our website at www.pmrs.pa.gov. 
B. Purpose and Requested Services 
PMRS is seeking a qualified firm with substantial public fund experience to provide comprehensive pension fund investment consulting services. The selected investment consulting firm will report to the Board and work closely with the Chief Executive Officer/Chief Investment Officer. The firm will serve in a fiduciary capacity and will acknowledge in writing the firm’s fiduciary status without qualification. In all cases the firm and its consultants will offer advice to PMRS solely in the interest of the plan participants and the beneficiaries of PMRS. The selected consulting firm is expected to provide the following services (and as described later in more detail): 

	Policy and Portfolio Duties:  
· Provide continuous review and recommendations regarding PMRS’ Investment Policy Statement (attached as Appendix B) consistent with best practices and PMRS’ portfolio structure relative to changes in capital markets and posture of similarly situated institutional investors. 
· Provide monitoring of and recommendations concerning portfolio rebalancing, securities lending, brokerage and transaction costs, custodial arrangements, and investment vendor selection.
· Provide recommendations regarding PMRS Proxy Voting Policy (attached as Appendix C).
· Assist in preparation of legislative and regulatory reporting as needed.
· Assist in portfolio transition event considerations and with evaluating pre-trade analyses, post trade analyses, and proposals from transition managers.
· Conduct an asset-liability study at least annually or as needed.
· Senior or lead consultant must attend every meeting of the Investment Committee and Board of Trustees. 

Asset Allocation and Manager Selection Duties:
· Conduct annual strategic asset allocation review and assessment of capital market assumptions. 
· Conduct portfolio structure, manager structure, and portfolio risk reviews as needed.
· Assist with evaluation of investment opportunities and manager selection. 
· Provide asset class research, analysis, and recommend new asset classes as appropriate. 
· Provide full access to all research and analytical software tools. 
· Provide ongoing due diligence on existing investment managers including performance, risk, organizational changes, and compliance with contract provisions. 
· Provide prompt and regular communication regarding important developments concerning existing investment managers. 

	Performance Measurement Duties: 
· Provide comprehensive quarterly reports on the investment performance of the Total Fund, by asset class, and by manager including an analysis of the current market environment and key events in the financial markets; review of the performance of major market indexes; analysis of the asset allocation of the current investment program; return attribution analysis, portfolio characteristics and peer universe analysis. Quarterly reports will also contain written commentary on the investment results of all portfolios in the context of their objectives and benchmarks, specific commentary on factors affecting performance, review of notable organizational issues for each investment manager, and a manager monitoring list.
· Monthly and quarterly reconciliations between investment manager returns and returns calculated by the consultant. Quarterly reconciliations must include written explanations of any differences outside established tolerance ranges. 
· Provide benchmark evaluation, implementation, and analysis. 
· Provide access to analytical software (if any). 

Education, Training, and Client Service Duties: 
· Attend all Investment Committee meetings. 
· Provide investment education and training to staff and the Board as needed but at least annually. 
· Provide assistance on special projects as needed. 
· Participate in ad hoc workshops on specific issues designated by the Board.
· Communicate regularly with staff about workflow and operational issues. 
· Respond to inquiries in an appropriate and timely manner. 
· Share all firm research. 
· Make no changes in the assigned consultant team without explicit approval of PMRS.

Questions being posed to and information sought from offerors

1. Do you find it appropriate to have strict guidelines for an Investment Policy Statement (IPS) or should the IPS  be structured in a more minimalist manner?
2. Please provide examples of 3 differentiated IPS’ with a description of the advantages and disadvantages of each.
3. How does an IPS differ for a pension plan that has outsourced some or all its investment staff?
4. What are the most critical issues to consider in establishing investment policy for  a public sector pension plan?
5. Included as Appendix B is PMRS’ IPS as of December 31, 2024.
Provide observations, and recommended changes, if any. (PMRS will be updating its IPS to include private markets with the anticipation of private credit and private infrastructure as the first two asset classes)
6. Describe your firm’s approach in developing investment policy and objectives for a public pension fund.
7. Describe the way your firm would assist the Board in monitoring its investment policy.
8. Describe how you will identify and evaluate new investment opportunities to recommend to PMRS. Provide samples of reports that would be made available to PMRS which detail the results of your firm’s analysis for each asset class specified below, identify the role you see it playing in a large pension fund today and in the
future, and identify form (e.g., separate account, derivative) of investments (if any) you feel are prudent.
i. Real Estate
ii. Commodities
iii. Infrastructure
iv. Hedge Funds
v. Alternative (e.g., venture capital, private equity, private debt, private credit, private infrastructure)
vi. Risk Parity
vii. Master Limited Partnerships
viii. Leverage
ix. Smart Beta
9. Attached as Appendix D is a copy of the proposed agreement between PMRS and whichever consultant is selected.  Attached as Appendix E is a copy of the Commonwealth’s Standard Terms and Conditions.  Please provide any proposed edits to Appendix D.  You must provide any edits you propose to the Agreement as part of your proposal. While PMRS may, in its sole discretion, consider edits to the agreement proposed by the approved consultant after selection, PMRS reserves the right to disqualify the approved consultant for offering edits to the agreement after selection.
10. Attached as Appendix F is a copy of the PMRB-30 (Disclosure Form).  Please complete this form.  Failure to complete this form will disqualify you from selection.

C. Investment Manager Search, Selection and Review of Fees and Contracts (Scoring and evaluation of managers)

Requested Services

In providing Consulting Services to the Board, and for all major asset classes, the consultant will:

1. Prepare an investment manager Request for Proposal (RFP) based on criteria defining the need in the investment portfolio. PMRS staff, in conjunction with the investment consultant, shall receive approval from the Board to conduct a search necessary to fill a need in the investment portfolio (e.g. termination of a manager or addition of a new mandate to the portfolio). The search may be advertised in industry publications and a notice posted on the PMRS website. When appropriate, the investment manager RFP shall also be made available on the investment consultant’s website.
2. Review investment manager RFP responses alongside PMRS staff to identify qualified candidates based solely on the criteria presented in the RFP. Staff, consultant and members of the Board may interview all, some, or none of the RFP respondents, undertake site visits to respondent offices and conduct such other due diligence as is prudent under the circumstances. The process may end at this point if there are no qualified investment manager candidates among the respondents.
3. Provide leadership and direction during manager interviews to include a list of potential interview questions.
4. Provide leadership and direction during manager interviews to include a structure to assist with rating each manager.
5. Develop summary interview materials for the PMRS staff use; and meet with the Chief Executive Officer/Chief Investment Officer and PMRS staff to review the search report. Chief Executive Officer/Chief Investment Officer or PMRS staff, and consultant will present the results of the investment manager RFP process to the Investment Committee and the Board in the form of a written report. This report will be presented during a public meeting of the Investment Committee and the Board and may include a recommendation of investment manager finalists to be interviewed by the Board.
6. Schedule and attend investment manager finalist presentations and assist the Investment Committee and the Board in selecting investment manager(s). The Investment Committee or the Board may interview finalists.

Questions being posed to and information sought from offerors


1. Describe the methodology and structure used in evaluating investment managers from initial RFP design, evaluation of responses and recommendations.
a. Provide evidence of your work for the following:
i. Pre-RFP reports provided to client
ii. Sample RFP for public equity including sample scoring of responses
iii. Initial review of RFP responses submitted to client
iv. Act as a facilitator scoring committee
v. Report on finalists including background checks
vi. Act as a facilitator for finalist interviews including best and final offer negotiations
vii. Report on the recommended manager
2. Do you maintain an investment manager recommendation list? If so, please provide the list.
3. Do you maintain a list of specific criteria that must be met for a manager to be considered and any characteristics that will automatically exclude a manager from consideration?
4. Describe your approach to performing reference checks on prospective managers, including both named and informal references. What roles/titles are typically included in this group? What specific red flags are you looking for? What service provider(s) do you utilize for background checks?
5. Please discuss the firm’s database of investment managers. How many single- strategies and how many fund of funds managers are in the database? What are some key factors the firm uses to rate managers in the database? Can the database be accessed by clients online?
6. Each year, on average, how many managers do you: 1) Meet with, 2) Subject to full due diligence, 3) Update prior full due diligence, and 4) Approve for investment?
7. Please describe your firm’s philosophy in the area of investment manager fee structures. Please be specific by including your firm’s philosophy on the use and structure of performance-based fees.
8. What fees or other consideration, if any, does your firm receive from managers who wish to be maintained in your database or on your approved list?
9. Provide your firm’s policies and procedures regarding the prevention of potential conflicts of interest as it relates to your approved list.
10. Describe your firm’s capabilities in the development of risk/return characteristics of a plan fund and of each asset category and individual manager.
11. Do you perform Operational Due Diligence (ODD) on a manager, and if so, what does that process entail?


D. Investment Performance Monitoring, Reporting, Analysis, Recommendations Requested Services
In providing Consulting Services to the Board, and for all major asset classes, the consultant will:

1. Provide on-going monitoring and oversight reports for all of PMRS’ investment
managers, including:
i. Advance notice to PMRS of in-person meeting with investment managers in
the Fund’s portfolio;
ii. Analysis of the manager’s absolute and relative performance in relation to benchmarks, investment objectives, and peer groups, including analysis of ex- post risk-adjusted performance;
iii. Analysis of attribution, holdings, style, and risk;
iv. Conduct on-site investment and operational due diligence meetings with current investment managers a minimum of every three years;
v. Advice on manager retention/termination; and
vi. Assist in developing a formal manager review process.
2. In providing Performance Measurement Services for the Fund, including all major asset classes recognized by PMRS as well as individual portfolios, the consultant will:
· Prepare a written monthly report containing the calculated total return (gross and net of fees) for asset class, portfolio management styles, and individual portfolios, and compare PMRS’ calculated data with benchmarks determined by PMRS and with data for a similar population of funds by asset class and portfolio management styles for all of the public market portfolios and composites. Returns should be calculated for the following time periods:
one-month, three-months, calendar year-to-date, 1-year, 3-year, 5-year, 10- year, 20-year, 25-year, 30-year, and since inception.
· Prepare a quarterly written report containing performance measurement attribution and analysis for each asset class and individual portfolio. The report should include a historical return analysis, dollar-oriented analysis, return oriented (wealth relative) analysis, excess return analysis, and risk/return analysis. Returns should be calculated for the following time periods: quarter, calendar year-to-date, 1-year, 3-year, 5-year, 10-year, 20- year, 25-year, 30-year, and since inception.
3. Provide projected performance analysis reports upon request.
4. With regard to performance attribution, be able to explain to the Board not only what the performance was, but why the performance occurred.
5. Recommend suitable investment opportunities and practical implementation methods; research supporting such recommendations must have been completed within the prior 12 months.
6. Provide research reports on asset allocation, investment issues, and provide description and evaluation of alternative approaches.
7. Provide information on market conditions and explain their impact on the Fund’s
investments.
8. Reconcile performance with both individual portfolio managers as well as the sub- custodian bank on a monthly basis.
9. Create additional composites with historical returns for those composites as requested by PMRS.
10. Provide quarter, calendar year-to-date, 1-year, 3-year, 5-year, and 10-year quartile ranking report of composite returns by fund (i.e. total fund, U.S. Equity Composite, etc.) as well as manager composite returns (for all asset classes).
11. Provide reasonable assistance to PMRS in uploading the consultant’s performance data to PMRS’ own investment system(s). Prepare a ten-year chart, through the end of the reporting quarter, showing the growth of $10,000 for each fund compared to that fund’s benchmark, and the upside and downside market capture ratios.
Provide ongoing due diligence on investment managers in the investment program including assessments of new products, organizational changes, and fee changes. This due diligence may also include site visits when appropriate. Communications regarding important developments at the investment managers and any recommendations for changes in assignments will be made when appropriate.Questions being posed to and information sought from offerors

1. Describe the content, format, and method of delivery of the quarterly performance reports you will prepare for PMRS. Performance reports are deemed to be inclusive of ex-post risk reporting and analysis. Describe instances where performance and risk indices and benchmarks are different. Include:
i. Data and method used to calculate total return before and after fees. Please identify which criteria in your methodology can be customized by client preference. PMRS, PMRS’ custodian bank, investment managers, and/or fund administrators will supply monthly portfolio market values.
ii. Time periods for which total returns can be calculated.
iii. Standard indices, custom indices, and benchmarks you will use for comparison.
iv. Total population of funds and public pension funds (including a large fund subset) you will use for universe comparisons.
v. Characteristics you will compare.
vi. Breakdown of PMRS’ fund market value.
vii. Market conditions.
2. Describe how your firm communicates attribution analysis to clients.
3. Describe how your firm will track and monitor dismissed managers in order to evaluate past decisions with the goal to determine if the decision was additive or not relative to the individual portfolio.
4. Describe your research and analysis capabilities, noting supporting human expertise and technology.
5. Are your resources internal or external? If any external resources are used, provide a description including the name of vendors providing these resources. How is the information used to inform and advise clients? List investment research reports or studies that you have provided clients in the past 12 months. Describe your capability to carry out special projects requested by PMRS. Provide sample reports that best represent your research capabilities.
6. Does your firm maintain a secure, client-facing platform that contains investment due diligence and operational due diligence reviews and reports, quantitative reports, activity notes related to managers, industry research, portfolio builder analytics, monitoring tools, customizable manager searches, and interactive risk exposure tools?
7. Is all firm research, including proprietary research, available to clients regardless of the firm department in which it was created?
8. Is analysis available to clients through firm analysts and software comparing public market managers with their peers? How quickly is this information provided following request?
9. Do you periodically meet with investment managers? If so, how often do you meet on-site vs. telephonically?
10. Please cite instances where your advice led to changes in a client’s investment
manager.
11. If you became convinced that a change was necessary to the structure, management or objective of one of your client’s existing investments or investment managers, what process would you follow in promoting adoption of the change?
12. Describe the variables and methodology you will consider in recommending performance benchmark(s) for PMRS. Provide samples of benchmarks you have recently recommended for current pension fund clients. If risk benchmarks are different than performance benchmarks, describe the differences and provide the same information as performance benchmarks (i.e. variables, methodology and sample benchmarks).
13. Describe in detail the performance measurement attribution and analysis service you propose to provide for PMRS. Note its usefulness for PMRS. Provide sample reports.
14. Describe in detail the fund management and consulting tools to which your firm will provide the Board and staff access. Provide sample reports. NOTE: PMRS may require a demonstration of such tools. In which circumstances might ETFs be appropriate for PMRS? What risks, benefits, and other factors must be considered? Please be specific.
15. Describe how your firm will obtain data from PMRS’s Master Trustee (BNY Mellon) and investment managers.
16. How does your firm verify the accuracy of data received from the Master Trustee?
17. What is your firm’s step-by-step process for return reconciliation?
18. How will discrepancies between your firm and the managers be investigated and resolved?
19. Discuss the timing of reliable performance data and report availability. Does your firm provide daily performance numbers?
20. Does your firm comply with GIPS performance presentation standards?
21. How would PMRS receive index, and benchmark returns from your firm? How soon after month-end would this information be available?
22. How would your firm report performance for real estate and alternative investments? Please describe any supplemental analysis your firm can provide for these asset classes.
23. Describe your firm’s capabilities, experience, and approach in advising and assisting
clients during periods of extreme market volatility.
24. Please explain briefly how your firm evaluates the investment performance of a retirement system at the total fund level.
25. Do your reports typically reflect the degree of risk undertaken by a Plan’s managers/investment options, in addition to reporting on the level of investment diversification?
26. If performance objectives are provided to you by PMRS, can your reports illustrate whether the Plan’s managers/investment options have been successful on a continuing basis in achieving those objectives?
27. How will you evaluate investment expenses incurred? Describe the evaluation framework in detail. What sources of industry/peer data will you employ?


E. Risk Management

Requested Services

In providing Consulting Services to the Board, and for all major asset classes, the consultant will:

1. Review and make recommendations regarding individual portfolio risk guidelines at least annually. Provide recommendations to develop and enhance Pension Fund risk management capabilities at the fund, asset class, and manager levels.
2. Prepare ex-post risk statistics and analytics for the same time periods, to the degree of depth, including benchmark comparatives, and use the same performance data from the above. Ex-post risk statistics and analytics should be robust and inclusive of industry best practices risk information.

Questions being posed to and information sought from offerors

1. Please discuss the appropriate role(s) of risk management in administration of investments for a public pension plan such as PMRS. Specify criteria that should be measured and analyzed, and the appropriate role(s) of the Board, staff, and consultant in measuring and analyzing the risk criteria. How does this relate to your definition of beta? How does this relate to your views on the separation of alpha from beta? Do you think of risk using a risk factor approach?


F. Asset Class Structures and Liability Modeling Requested Services
In providing Consulting Services to the Board, and for all major asset classes, the consultant will:

1. Provide ongoing advice and technical support in the establishment and refinement of portfolio asset allocation, investment goals, objectives, and policies. The consultant will use asset allocation models to determine the influence of differing asset mixes and investment style strategies on the projected return to PMRS and the projected risk resulting from differing asset mixes and strategies. The consultant will also assist PMRS with rebalancing activities and transition management as needed.
2. Conduct a formal annual review of the asset allocation investment program including a review and assessment of the underlying capital market assumptions.
3. Conduct a formal annual review of the allocation among the investment managers considering risk profiles.
4. Conduct a review of the Alternatives Portfolio focusing on:
a. The current composition and continuing expected relative benefit of  each component of the Portfolio,
b. An assessment of the ability of each component to accept additional allocations or to provide a source of funds for other investment,
c. The potential addition of different investment types including a recommendation on size, vehicle and a review of the continuing appropriateness of the benchmarks for each component of the Portfolio, and a review and modification, if necessary, of the current policy regarding the goal, composition and benchmark for the evaluation of the Alternatives Portfolio.
5. Support the selection of real estate investments including search(es) for commingled funds, individual funds or partnerships appropriate for PMRS to meet the requirements of the annual investment pacing analysis by analyzing investments coming to market, analyzing other appropriate investment opportunities and conducting detailed due diligence.
6. Annually, work with the Board and the Pension Fund actuary to review the actuarial calculations. The firm will assist the Board with funding goals through recommendations to improve fund performance. The firm will be expected to work regularly with the PMRS’ actuary.

Questions being posed to and information sought from offerors

1. Describe your process, and the variables included, in preparing a written Asset/Liability Study. Provide a sample Asset/Liability Study you would submit to the Board.
2. What do you see as being the most significant changes that will be occurring in asset allocation for pension funds over the next 10 years?
3. Please describe your investment philosophy and process. Include the approach to formulating goals and objectives, and a description of the modeling concepts and related methodology used to perform asset allocation modeling. Also, address the decision-making process and the titles and responsibilities of the various individuals involved in each step of the process.
4. What is the range of target allocations which you are currently recommending to your clients? How and why have you revised these recommended ranges over time?
5. What expected risk and return assumptions are you currently recommending clients use in their total portfolio asset allocation modeling? If these vary by investment time period or by publicly traded vs. private investment vehicles, please specify the assumptions for each category. How and why have these assumption recommendations changed over time?
6. What role and proportion does your firm generally recommend for non-U.S. dollar denominated assets for U.S. tax-exempt client portfolios? For alternative investments?
7. What is your firm’s recommendation on currency hedging?
8. Cite specific examples where a client’s portfolio performance was enhanced, or a
potential problem identified and corrected as a result of your monitoring activities.
9. Does your firm advocate short-term or tactical changes in asset allocation in response to changing market conditions? If so, what approach does it recommend to its clients?
10. Please discuss your views on the appropriateness of either passively managed portfolios, actively managed portfolios, or a combination of both actively and passively managed portfolios, by asset class. What important factors must be considered by a pension fund such as PMRS in order to determine which of these approaches is likely to be most beneficial?
11. What role and proportion does your firm generally recommend for non-U.S. dollar denominated assets for U.S. tax-exempt client portfolios? What is your firm’s recommendation on currency hedging?



G. Board Support: Meetings and Training Requested Services
In providing Consulting Services to the Board, and for all major asset classes, the consultant will:

1. Meet with the Board to report on investment matters. Generally, there are four regularly scheduled Board meetings annually, including an annual investment manager meeting where PMRS’ investment managers participate in various
roundtable discussions. The selected consultant will be expected to help coordinate the roundtable discussion topics. Special meetings may be scheduled as needed.
2. Assist with the staff support for any specialized investment specific board-level committees.
3. Report the performance results to the Board quarterly, including relative results versus established benchmarks, results versus other public defined benefit pension plans, and the returns relative to the risks taken.
4. Provide relevant training to the Board and staff, as needed, but in no case more than three days in any one calendar year. PMRS reserves the right to videotape any training sessions for educational purposes.
5. Monitor, review, and provide advice regarding best practices.
6. Provide ongoing review of strengths and vulnerabilities in current practices.

Questions being posed to and information sought from offerors

1. Describe the type and frequency of research and investment-related education that would be provided to the Board.

H. Other duties, projects, services, communications 
Requested Services
In providing Consulting Services to the Board, and for all major asset classes, the consultant will:

1. Work with staff and the actuary to conduct an asset/liability study annually for each calendar year and present the results to the Board in March of the following year starting March 2026.
2. Provide long-term expected rate of return for GASB 68 reports annually.
3. Provide money-weighted return and other supporting documentation for the investment section of the ACFR annually.
4. Assist with communications with investment managers.
5. Assist with coordination of the annual investment meeting: to include facilitation of discussion topics and questions posed to panelists.
6. Carry out other assignments that may be specified by the Board and staff, as required.

Questions being posed to and information sought from offerors

1. Discuss your willingness to establish a knowledge transfer relationship with PMRS and describe the activities and information that this would entail including data sharing and analytics.
2. Describe the access and interaction PMRS would have with members of your staff, other than the assigned consultant and backup.
3. Briefly summarize your philosophy regarding the consultant’s relationships with boards, staff, and investment managers.
4. Briefly summarize your firm’s philosophy regarding the firm’s relationship with the
Board, actuary, staff, and investment managers.

I. 	Qualifications

Requested Services

The Offeror should meet all the following qualifications. Failure to satisfy each of the qualifications, or agree to meet each of the following requirements, may result in the immediate rejection of the proposal. PMRS invites vendors to submit a proposal whether or not they meet the minimum qualifications. Failure to meet the minimum qualifications will not automatically result in rejection of the proposal. Rather, PMRS will consider the offeror’s qualifications when scoring the proposals and give them the weight they deserve. Failure to meet the minimum qualifications may result in the offeror being deemed not responsible.

1. As of December 31, 2025, the Offeror must have at least five (5) tax-exempt clients, of which at least 3 are public pension plan clients having over $1 billion in assets, for whom it provides investment consulting work at both fund- and asset-class levels. Duties related to each engagement must include asset allocation, asset/liability, and risk analysis.
2. The Offeror must have been in the business of providing investment consulting services for at least five years, evidenced by a certificate of incorporation or copy of Form ADV as well as documentation of investment consulting clients (including venture capital/private equity/real estate consulting clients) which date back five years.
3. The Offeror must be a Registered Investment Advisor with the SEC under the Investment Advisors Act of 1940. Provide a copy of the latest Form ADV Parts I and II.
4. The primary consultant and principal assistant that will be assigned to the PMRS account must each have at least five years’ experience analyzing, monitoring, recommending for investment, or investing in, each asset class recognized by PMRS in its Investment Policy Statement, which can be found in Appendix B.
5. Offeror will be required to perform services under this agreement subject to the exercise of that degree of judgment and care under the circumstances then prevailing which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence who are expert in such matters, exercise in the management of like matters, not in regard to speculation but in regard to the permanent disposition of the Fund, considering the probable income to be derived therefrom as well as the probable safety of the invested capital. Offeror will be required to acknowledge, with respect to PMRS and the Fund and/or Trust, that, without qualification, it is a “fiduciary” as that term is defined in the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), regardless of the applicability of ERISA to this agreement.
6. Offeror will be required to include in its consulting services staff professionals dedicated to, and expert in, investment risk, fiduciary, and investment governance topics.


Questions being posed to and information sought from offerors

The Offeror’s consulting team must provide written responses to each of the mandatory qualifications and requirements substantiating how your firm satisfies each qualification and confirming that your firm will satisfy each requirement. The responses must contain enough information as prescribed to assure the Board of its accuracy. Failure to provide complete information may result in the rejection of the proposal.

1. Please provide the following information about your firm:
a. Provide a summary description of your firm including the name, year formed, history, ownership structure, names of owners or partners, subsidiary or affiliate relationships, and the reporting and control structure. If you are an affiliate or subsidiary of another company, what percentage of the firm’s total revenue does your division generate? Please describe the organizational structure and your relationship to the parent company and any other subsidiaries. List services to the investment community (trading, investment
management, database) other than investment consulting services, provided by your firm, as well as services of any parent, subsidiary, or affiliate. If investment consulting is not your only line of business, please make clear in answering these questions the history and circumstances of your entrance into investment consulting.
b. Do senior executives have ownership interests in the firm? If so, how much?
2. State the name, title, address and telephone number of the proposal contact person. Will the primary consultant assigned to PMRS account have ownership interest in the firm or is there a specific arrangement for sharing in the profits earned by the enterprise (e.g., salary, bonus, group/individual performance incentives, profit sharing, etc.)? Please describe.
3. Please provide the following financial information:
i. Audited financial statements for the past three (3) years.
ii. Any special audit reports concerning internal controls for the past three (3) years.
4. Within the past five years, have there been any significant developments (e.g., changes in ownership, personnel reorganization, new business ventures) in your firm? If so, describe these developments in detail.
5. Do you anticipate any significant changes in your firm? If so, describe these anticipated changes and their impact on clients.
6. Have any senior executives left the firm in the past five years? Please describe the circumstances of their departure(s).
7. Explain your firm’s goals for expansion and accepting new client business. How will
the firm control the quality of service to clients? Include the following:
i. Total number of accounts that will be accepted.
ii. Total assets that will be accepted.
iii. Plans for additions to professional staff and approximate timing in relation to growth of accounts and/or assets.
8. What is the location of firm headquarters and any branch offices? If several locations, what quality controls does the firm use to ensure consistency of services among clients, and how does the firm handle research, information processing and databases?
9. List your firm’s lines of business and approximate contributions of each business to your firm’s total revenue. If you are an affiliate or subsidiary of another company, what percentage of the firm’s total revenue does your division generate?
10. Over the past five years, has your organization or any officer or principal been involved in any litigation or other legal proceedings relating to your investment or consulting activities? If so, provide a brief explanation and indicate the current status.
11. Has your firm or any officer, director, partner, principal or employee ever been the subject of any non‐routine investigation or inquiry by a governmental agency or self‐ regulatory body regarding fiduciary responsibilities or other investment‐related matters? If so, describe each instance and summarize any directives or letters of opinion that were issued.
12. Please provide a copy of the most recent review by a government agency or regulatory body of your firm that relates to the services sought by PMRS.
13. List the names of pension funds your firm has as clients, indicating whether your firm represents these clients on a discretionary or non-discretionary basis.
14. List your five largest public pension plan clients by assets. For each of these pension fund clients, please provide asset value of client by asset class, year client retained
your firm, average five-year asset mix of client, percent of funds for which you provided consulting services, and the five-year annualized total return of the client funds’ investment portfolio as of December 31, 2019.
i. Number of Pension Plan Clients with Asset Value less than $1 billion
ii. Number of Pension Plan Clients with Asset Value $1 billion – less than $10 billion
iii. Number of Pension Plan Clients with Asset Value $10 billion – less than $30 billion
iv. Number of Pension Plan Clients with Asset Value more than $30 billion
v. Number of years Pension Plan Clients have retained the firm
15. Does your firm operate any funds or other pooled investment vehicles, including, but not limited to, funds of funds? Please identify each.
16. Please list the names of pension plan clients that you have added in the last three years, and the assets of each. Specify if DB, DC, or both.
17. Does your firm have any record or rating system that depicts value it has added over either a random fund selection process or an intelligent indexing approach? If so, please provide and explain.
18. State what you believe differentiates your consulting services from your competitors.
19. Explain in detail any potential for conflict that would be created by your firm contracting with PMRS, including other client relationships that may inhibit services to PMRS and/or the other clients.
20. How does your firm resolve potential conflicts of interest in recommending or making investments in prospective programs among clients?
21. Provide an organization chart showing name, title, function, and area of expertise of pension fund consulting professionals and support staff.
22. Delineate the proposed management of services to PMRS. Provide names of staff who will serve as primary consultants, principal assistants, and other general contacts with your firm. Specify the role and scope of involvement for each individual. Will the primary consultant be available to attend all Board meetings and assist the Board’s investment staff when needed?
23. For proposed primary consultant, principal assistant, risk professionals, and other key individuals who will be providing services to PMRS, provide a biographical profile to include education, years and areas of professional investment consulting experience, and years and areas of professional investment consulting experience with your firm.
24. Please provide a description of your succession and continuity plans for management of the firm.
25. How does the firm monitor performance of consultants, analysts, and other investment professionals that it employs?
26. Provide a brief general description of the firm’s compensation agreements for professional staff, including bonuses, profit sharing and equity ownership. Is some
component of compensation deferred? Does your firm have employment contracts
and/or non‐compete agreements with investment professionals?
27. Describe the job qualifications required by your firm when hiring investment professionals. Are there specific qualifications unique to those involved in investment consulting?
28. Describe your internal training procedures for consultants and research analysts.
29. What is the overall philosophy of the firm regarding an investment consultant’s role
with respect to the board of trustees, staff, and investment managers?
30. State as clearly as possible the firm’s investment philosophy. Are there any fundamental beliefs about capital markets which underpin the firm’s investment advice to its pension plan clients? Include discussion on your views as they pertain to varying investment environments (e.g., inflationary, recessionary), and on the separation of alpha from beta.
31. List all standard services provided in a typical pension plan consulting assignment. List the specialized services that you have provided to meet other needs of your clients.
32. Indicate whether investment consulting capabilities were developed in-house or derived through acquisition of talent from another firm. If the latter, indicate when this occurred.
33. Is your firm, its parent or affiliate a broker/dealer? Does your firm trade for client accounts through this broker/dealer? If so, to what extent?
34. Does your firm provide investment management services to U.S. tax-exempt investors? If so, to what extent?
35. Does your firm accept investment managers as clients? If so, for what products? Please disclose the investment management firms that are clients, and the revenue received from these firms during the past five years.
36. Please answer the following:
i. Total assets advised (all asset classes, $ millions)
ii. Total number clients (all asset classes)
37. List below the total number of persons employed by your firm:
i. Consultants  	
ii. Research Analysts  	
iii. Performance Measurement
iv. Specialists  	
v. Other Professional  	
vi. Support/Clerical  	
38. Please describe your firm’s back-up procedures in the event the primary consultant assigned to this account should leave the firm or is not available to attend a scheduled meeting.
39. What other programs do you have in place to retain key staff? Please be detailed and specific.
40. Demonstrate the advisor’s knowledge of state or local political, economic, legal, or
other issues that may affect the PMRS investments.
41. Disclose any finder’s fees, fee splitting, payments to consultants, or other contractual
arrangements of the firm that could present a real or perceived conflict of interest.
42. Describe the internal structure, organization, capabilities, and resources of your research department and its resources. (If no separate department exists, describe how this function is performed.) Is your firm’s investment research proprietary or from a third party?
Disclose all services provided and compensation received (including the sources of such compensation, whether direct or indirect) between your firm and investment managers, plan officials, beneficiaries, sponsors, and/or others as required by Standard 2b of the Investment Management Consultants Association Standards of Practice.
J. [bookmark: _bookmark9]Disaster Recovery

Questions being posed to and information sought from offerors

1. Describe how you anticipate a crisis will impact your operations.
2. Describe your emergency response continuity of operations plan. Please attach a copy of your plan, or at a minimum, summarize how your plan addresses the following aspects of pandemic preparedness:
a. Employee training (describe your organization’s training plan, and how
frequently your plan will be shared with employees).
b. Identified essential business functions and key employees (within your organization) necessary to carry them out.
c. Contingency plans for:
I. How your organization will handle staffing issues when a portion of key employees are incapacitated due to illness.
II. How employees in your organization will carry out the essential functions if contagion control measures prevent them from coming to the primary workplace.
d. How your organization will communicate with staff and suppliers when primary communications systems are overloaded or otherwise fail, including key contacts, chain of communications (including suppliers), etc.
e. [bookmark: _bookmark1][bookmark: _bookmark2][bookmark: _bookmark3][bookmark: _bookmark4][bookmark: _bookmark5][bookmark: _bookmark6][bookmark: _bookmark7][bookmark: _bookmark8]How and when your emergency plan will be tested, and if the plan will be tested by a third-party.
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